REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL
PRE-SCHOOL AT EXETER STREET HALL, BRIGHTON
INTRODUCTION
Exeter Street Hall has been purchased by The Hall Get Involved Ltd (THGI), an Industrial and Provident Society.  The purchase was completed in August 2013, since when a programme of “first fix” works to make the building safe, warm and dry has been initiated.  Our business plan (see website www.exeterstreethall.org) envisages a pre-school opening in September 2014.  We would now like to invite the submission of proposals from potential pre-school providers who share our aims and values.
Our agreed mission statement is: “a volunteer-led social enterprise that has the community needs at its heart.  Providing a space to offer a range of activities for everyone to enjoy.”  Our values, which are still being consulted on, are “inclusive, fair, inspiring, open, sustainable and socially responsible”.
Please answer the following questions to form your proposal, adding any observations and information you wish to which are not covered by the questions.  

MISSION STATEMENT, VALUES, POLICIES, WAY OF WORKING
Do you have a statement of mission, vision, values, aims or equivalent?  If so, what is it?  Do you consider that your vision fits well with that of THGI?  Would you be happy to work in a flexible, multi-use centre with facilities catering for all age groups and sections of the community?
	



We would like a provider who, in common with all our hirers, agrees with and can comply with our stated policies, especially on Equal Opportunities, Child Protection and Safeguarding, and Health and Safety (see website www.exeterstreethall.org).   Please can you comment on your ability to do this, and attach any policies of your own?
	



We are seeking a not-for-profit provider of affordable childcare in a community pre-school setting.  Please can you outline your understanding of this concept and how you would comply with it?  Would you be in sole control of the pre-school or would it be run by a management committee, and what are your reasons for choosing your preferred organisational model?
	



The pre-school would not be directly managed by THGI, but rather would pay rent for its hours of use (including set-up and clear-away time).  Would this suit your own choice of operational model, and why?
	



We understand that we need to prioritise and correctly specify work on the building that will ensure proper, Ofsted-approved facilities for the pre-school, but we will need help and advice from our chosen provider to achieve this.  Do you have the time, willingness and expertise to work alongside our Building team to this end, in advance of the pre-school’s registration?  Please outline how you would envisage this working.
	






FINANCE
You will see from our Business Plan that the hourly rental rate for the pre-school originally proposed was £7.88.  This is based on figures obtained from Early Years at Brighton and Hove City Council for similar settings, and represents just over half our normal hourly hire rate of £15, as we recognise that £15 would be a prohibitive amount for a pre-school to pay, and that a reliable income stream for 20 to 25 hours per week is very valuable even at a lower rate.  The figures in the business plan are due for revision, not least in the light of rising energy bills, and we would welcome your comments.  Please tell us the level of rent you would expect or be prepared to pay, and in addition your pricing structure and the number of children you intend to register for?
	



Please attach to your proposal both your general Business Plan and a three-year cash flow or profit and loss forecast for this setting.  Please include in the latter your proposed charges for lunch periods, if any, and for any hours over and above those statutorily funded.
THGI’s ability to have the hall ready for Ofsted registration in time for a pre-school to open in September 2014 depends on raising further funds for major works.  Would you be able and willing to work alongside our Fundraising team to help access funding sources specific to a pre-school setting?  How would you envisage this working in practice?  Is your forward planning able to include enough flexibility for a later opening if the necessary injection of funds is not achieved in time for September 2014?
	





TYPE OF PROVISION
It will be a pack-away setting as the hall is to be used by many different groups.  Are you happy to work in this way?  Roughly how much storage space would you require?  We have assumed approx. half an hour to set up and half an hour to clear away each session in the Business Plan.  Is this a fair assumption?
	



Our research among local parents of young children indicates that there would be demand for a pre-school, but differs in the detail of preferred options for the provision. (i) roughly equal numbers of those asked would like it to start at 2, 2.5 and 3 years.  What is your own preference, and why?  
	



(ii) just over half would like to access only the statutorily funded 15 hours per week, with just under half preferring additional hours for which they would pay themselves.  What is your preference and why? (Please note that the maximum number of hours per week in the Business Plan is 25, including set-up and pack-away, to allow for other activities in the hall.  There may be flexibility to add another couple of hours, but not much more.)  
	



(iii) most would favour a combination of morning and afternoon sessions and a charged lunch period.  This could work out, for example, as 5 or 6 sessions of 3 hours each across 2.5 or 3 days.  Might this work for you?  Please give reasons for and/or against, and explain your own preference if it is different, eg 5 mornings.  
	



(iv) some individuals would prefer to take up less than their 15 hour statutory entitlement.  Would you consider this as an option, and if so how might it work in practice?
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Would your preference be to run for 38 term-time weeks only, or to offer sessions in the school holidays as well?  (Please note that the hall is likely to have to close in August for the foreseeable future for building works.)  If you prefer to offer sessions across more than 38 weeks, would you envisage provision over and above the annual entitlement of 570 hours, or a shorter week over a longer period such as 13 hours per week over 44 weeks?  Please explain the reasons for your choice.
	



There has been a suggestion, which has proved popular, of running a weekly childcare session alongside an exercise class for parents/carers.  Might you be interested in providing such a session, perhaps in advance of the pre-school itself opening?
	











APPLICATION PROCESS
Please submit your proposal electronically to info@exeterstreethall.org, by adding answers of your chosen length after each question or invitation to comment contained in this request for proposal.  Please add your name and contact details (as many as possible of address, email address, landline and mobile numbers).
The deadline for submission is Monday 2nd December 2013.  There will be a bidders’ meeting from 3.30 to 4.30pm on Friday 22nd November in the hall, at which you will be able to see the premises and take advantage of a question and answer session, if you choose to attend.
Shortlisted candidates will be interviewed by a panel including representatives of Early Years and THGI during the week of 9th to 13th December.  The preferred provider will be selected by the week beginning 16th December, and all shortlisted bidders will be informed of the decision during that week.  It is hoped that the preferred provider will start to work alongside THGI in January 2014.  

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS
For background information please see the website www.exeterstreethall.org, and in particular:
THGI Equal Opportunities Policy
THGI Child Protection Policy
THGI Health and Safety Policy
THGI Hire Conditions (general)
Exeter Street Hall Floor Plan
Business Plan
Please attach to your Proposal the following:
Your general Business Plan
Three-year cash flow forecast for this setting
Your CV
Name and contact details of two referees, one of whom should be your current or most recent employer
Your policies on Equal Opportunities, Staff training and qualifications, and any others you consider relevant
There is no need to attach copies of your qualification certificates, disclosure and barring checks or insurance as these will be covered by your application to Ofsted to register the setting if you are selected as our preferred provider.  We may also ask to see some or all of these at a later stage, but do not require this of all candidates at this stage in the process. Please confirm, however, that if selected, you will be in a position to comply with all Ofsted requirements that relate to you as the provider.

Thank you for your interest in our project.
